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PRE-BID CONFERENCE SUMMARY 
 
 
Project Number:   10217979   
 
Project Name:  MRO Aero Park Blvd. Infrastructure   
   
Date:  May 18, 2018    
    
Time:  10:00 AM      
    
Location:  7250 S. Tucson Blvd. Suite 300, Tucson, AZ.  85756, Catalina Room        
    
Funding:  TAA      
 
Contracting Officer:  Ray Valdez  
 
Project Director:   Mike Smejkal  
 
Project Engineer:  Rich Zych  

 
 
1. SIGN IN AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 
1.1. See attached list for attendees. 

 
1.2. Ray Valdez welcomed all attendees and made brief introductions of TAA staff and the Project 

Engineer. 
 
1.3. Ray Valdez indicated that a copy of the pre-bid conference summary and associated sign-in sheets will 

be distributed to all bid set holders of record and pre-bid conference attendees via addendum. Bidders 
wishing to receive any further addenda must confirm they are on the Bid Holder’s List. 

 
2. BIDDING REQUIREMENTS:  

2.1 Bids will be opened at 2:00 p.m. Local Tucson Time on Friday, June 8, 2018 at the TAA Administrative 
Offices, 7250 S. Tucson Blvd, Suite 300, Catalina Room, Third Floor, Tucson, Arizona 85756. 

2.2 All requests for clarifications or substitutions shall be made in writing to the Engineer via email at 
Richard.zych@stantec.com.  Answers will be provided in the form of an addendum to all bid set 
holders of record and pre-bid meeting attendees.  The last day for questions will be May 31, 2018 and 
a final addendum, if necessary, will be issued on June 4, 2018.   

2.3 The contractor shall carefully complete the bid as required by the Contract Documents. 
 

2.4 Bidders must prepare their bid on the Bid Form and Bid Schedules provided on pages 41 – 43 and Bid 
Schedules 1-3 of the Bid Documents and must enclose with their bid all items listed on page 42.  TAA 
reserves the right to accept all, some, or none of the alternates. 

2.5 Bidders must enclose a properly executed Non-collusion Affidavit in the form provided on page 44 of 
the Bid Documents. 
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2.6 Bidders must enclose a properly executed TAA Interest List Form on provided on page 21 of the Bid 

Documents for themselves and their subcontractors if not already on TAA’s Interest List. 
2.7 All bids must include a bid bond in the amount of 10 percent of the aggregate of the base bid amount 

and alternates in the form shown on page 48 of the Bid Documents. 
2.8 The Work to be performed will be subject to the provisions of Title 34 of the Arizona Revised 

Statutes (A.R.S. § 34-201, et seq., as amended).  All bidders and subcontractors must be duly 
licensed to perform the work at the time the bid is submitted (or exempt from licensing requirements).  
If a licensing exemption is claimed, the bidder must set forth basis for any claimed exception on page 
42 of the Bid Form at the time the bid is submitted. 

2.9 DBE:  It is the policy of the TAA to practice nondiscrimination based on race, color, sex or national 
origin in the award or performance of this contract. The Owner encourages participation by all firms 
qualifying under this solicitation regardless of business size or ownership.  

               It is also the policy of TAA to ensure that Disadvantaged Business Enterprise firms ("DBEs") have a fair 
and equal opportunity to participate in TAA's contracts.  Specifically, it is the goal of TAA to ensure that, 
to the extent reasonably possible and consistent with other legal requirements that: (a) DBEs are not 
discriminated against in the award and administration of TAA's contracts; (b) a level playing field is 
created on which DBEs can compete fairly for TAA's contracts; and (c) any barriers to the participation 
of DBEs in TAA's contracts are removed.  TAA has set an aspirational 7% (7% of the dollar value of 
the contract) DBE participation goal for this contract.  

               Contractors and contractors’ subcontractors who are submitting bids as DBEs must be certified 
DBEs in Arizona in good standing prior to the date bids are due.  TAA recognizes current DBE 
certifications by the ADOT, City of Phoenix and City of Tucson.  Bidders must submit a completed 
and signed “Statement of Proposed DBE Utilization,” found on page 22 of the Bid Documents, with 
their bid.  DBE-related questions may be directed to Veronica Ruiz-Ronquillo, TAA’s DBE Liaison 
Officer at 520-573-8100. 

 
3.   CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS:  

 
3.1 Bidders shall carefully review the Construction Services Agreement provided on pages 45 - 48 of the 

Bid Documents, as well as the Master General Conditions, Exhibit A of the Bid Documents. 
3.2 There will be liquidated damages for this project in the amount of $425 per day past the date of 

Substantial Completion.    
3.3 Insurance requirements are shown on pages 32 – 33 of the Master General Conditions.  Bidders 

should carefully review these requirements to confirm they can comply. 
3.4 Performance and Payment bonds will be required for this project in the form found on pages 49 and 50 

of the Bid Documents. 
 
3.5 Contractor must comply with all Federal and State required contract provisions as outlined in the 

Contract Documents.   
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4. PROJECT SCOPE AND TIMING:  
 

4.1 Mike Smejkal and the Project Engineer reviewed the Scope of the Work. 
 
 4.2 Mike Smejkal indicated that the successful Bidder will be required to achieve Substantial Completion 

of the entire Work in accordance with the terms of the contract not later than 70 Calendar Days for 
the Base Bid and 15 Calendar days for the Additive Alternate #1, after the issuance of the Notice to 
Proceed by TAA.   

4.3 A copy of the “Ground Rules for Construction at TAA and Ryan Airfield” (May, 2018) was included in 
the bid documents and was made available to meeting attendees.  Bidders should note the 
requirements for a Project Safety Plan and Project Construction Management Plan. 
 

5. GENERAL INFORMATION:  
 

5.1 Construction survey layout requirements are explained in the Contract Documents. 
 

5.2 The project general utilizes PAG specifications.  Contractor will be responsible for Quality Control 
testing/inspection as outlined in PAG specifications.  TAA/Engineer may have QA material assurance 
testing completed on certain items. 

 
5.3 The Contractor is responsible for arranging and payment of all costs for temporary utilities.  Power and 

telephone are available near the yard area. 
 
5.4 Portable toilets will be required at the job and yard site. 
 
5.5 Work will occur within the secured area operations area of the airfield and will require contractor to have 

appropriately number of badged staff to properly escort within TSA guidelines.  Contractor will need to 
schedule and pay for background checks for escorts with TAA’s Badging Office.  Escorts will also be 
required to take non-movement drivers training which can be scheduled with TAA’s Airside Operations 
Department. 

 
5.6 Subcontractor work shall not be permitted without supervision of the Prime Contractor. 
 
5.7 No drugs, alcohol or firearms are allowed on any airport property. 

 
5.8 All Contractor vehicles shall be identified with permanent lettering that may be easily read from 20’ 

away, on each side of the vehicle, showing the name of the company.  Company owned, but not 
lettered vehicles, shall be marked with magnetic signs with the company name and shall be at least 
12”x24” mounted on each side of the vehicle and easily read from 20’ away on each side of the vehicle.  

 
5.9 All company vehicles admitted to the secured area shall have a copy of vehicle registration (or 

rental/lease contract) and insurance card in the name of the company. 
 
5.10 All vehicles operating during the daylight hours are required to have a 3’ x 3’ orange and white checked 

flag with 1-foot squares attached firmly to the high point of the vehicle, where it will not fall off or become 
soiled.  During evening hours, rotating or flashing amber beacon attached firmly to the highest point of 
the vehicle is required. 
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5.11 No private vehicles are permitted in the secured operations area.  Parking of private vehicles will be in a 
designated area, usually in or adjacent to the contractor yard. 

 
5.12 All Contractor personnel will be required to sign an entry log sheet.   
 
5.13 It is mandatory that all aspects of the OSHA Hazardous Materials Communications Program be 

provided for, including Material Safety Data Sheets, which must be filed in a designated location on the 
project, available to personnel and the Fire Department. 

 
5.14 The Contractor shall be responsible for the immediate cleanup of any leaking or spilled substance, 

such as fuel, oil, anti-freeze, etc.  Spilled materials shall be disposed of off airport property in a proper 
manner.  The Contractor shall provide TAA with documentation describing disposal. 

 
5.15 The work and traffic areas must be kept free of debris, including dust, mud, construction materials, etc. 

which would jeopardize operations.  Active pavements adjacent to the work site shall be cleaned by 
appropriate methods to insure that foreign materials are not present to damage aircraft or ground 
vehicles. 

 
5.16 TAA shall not be responsible for the security of any stored materials or equipment.  The Contractor 

shall provide whatever measures are necessary to protect materials or equipment. 
 
5.17 Personnel will be working in a high noise area and should take appropriate protective measures. 
 
 

 
6. DISCUSSION 

 
 The floor was opened to questions and answers and discussion followed. 
 
Q. Regarding quality control testing? You indicated that the Airport may provide some services?  How do I 

prepare my proposal because contractors will make a selection on pricing from the different testing firms.  I 
do not want to include a lot of testing in my proposal that the Airport will do?  What is considered 
acceptance testing vs quality control testing?     

 
A. The contractor will be required to complete QC testing in accordance with PAG specifications.  TAA may 

elect to complete additional Quality Assurance Testing; however, that would be independent testing that 
just verifies contractor’s results.  It shouldn’t be in lieu of contractor testing. 

 
 
Q. Will taxiway C be in use during construction? 
 
A. No, it is not in use today and it will become live after this project is complete. 
 
 
Q. Will the developer (taxiway C) be working while construction on this project is taking place?  
 
A.  Potentially, there may be some overlap in work being performed so there will have to be some coordination, 

sharing of access and entrance points. 
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Q.   As per that first section regarding fence installation and grading beforehand, do we have to put the rip rap in 

there too or just grading and install?  
 
A. Contractors should put everything in place before hand so that the fence does not need to be modified later.  
 
 
Q. Why can’t a temporary AOA fence be placed to allow all work outside the AOA and install permanent fence 

once the project is done?    
 
A.  We do not allow temporary “orange construction” type fencing.  The fence must be a 6’ chain link fence 

anchored into the ground with barbed wire. The airport is willing to consider a temporary AOA alignment if 
the contractor wishes, however the temporary fence must be constructed to the same standards as 
permanent fencing.  

 
 
Q. Can Work zone B be done with both Zone C and D as well?  
 
A.      Yes, as long as the fencing is priority in order to remove the project from the secured area as soon as 

possible.   A lot of the work can be done simultaneously.   
  
 
Q. Can you share with us the point of access for construction equipment and materials.  
 
A. Gate 79 at the end of AeroPark will be the access point. 
 
 
Q. Is there any need for excess spoils that will be generated to remain onsite for future and/or current project 

or does everything need to be hauled off site. 
 
A. We anticipate the project will be close to balancing.  However, if there are excess materials an area within 

the project area will be designated for a stockpile area.   
 
 
Q. Is there a construction water source? Has one been identified? Or is there onsite hydrants? 
 
A. A specific hydrant has not been identified.  Contractor will be required to identify a water source and 

coordinate City of Tucson meter.   
 
 
Q. How about barricading, has there been any design on barricading?  What are the requirements?  Are there 

any special aircraft barricading or low profiles required? 
 
A. There is a small amount of low profile barricading along Taxiway C as noted in the plans.     
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7. SITE VISIT 

 
Mike Smejkal indicated that a site visit would be conducted for interested firms. 

 
The conference adjourned at 10:30a.m. and a site visit was conducted. 

 
 
 

This is a summary of the proceedings of the Pre-Bid Conference as recalled by Ray Valdez.  A tape recording of the 
proceedings was made and is on file in the TAA Planning and Engineering Division offices. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: File O 



Tucson Airport Authority – TUS/RYN 
REVEGETATION SEED MIX 

Botanical Name Common Name 

PLS Rate 
(Pounds 

Per Acre) 

Ambrosia deltoidea Triangle-leaf Bursage 1.5 

Aristida purpurea Purple Threeawn 3 

Bouteloua curtipendula 
cv. Vaughn * Sideoats Grama 1 

Bouteloua barbata Sixweeks Grama 1 

Bothriochloa barbinodis Cane Beardgrass 1 

Bouteloua rothrockii Rothrock's Grama 1 

Distichlis stricta Desert Saltgrass 1.5 

Eschscholtzia mexicana Mexican Poppy 1.5 

Heteropogon contortus Tanglehead 0.2 

Lesquerella gordonii Gordon's Bladderpod 1.5 

Lupinus succulentus Arroyo Lupine 5 

Penstemon parryi Parry Penstemon 1 

Salvia Columbariae Desert Chia 1 

Senna covesii Desert Senna 2 

Sphaeralcea ambigua Desert Globemallow 1 

Verbena goodingii Desert Verbena 1 
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